SUNY Cobleskill's

Baccalaureate Internship Manual

Adapted from the State University of New York University Faculty Senate, Undergraduate Academic Programs and Policies Committee 2004-2007, www.suny.edu/facultysenate and from the SUNY University Faculty Senate, Internships and Co-Ops, A Guide for Planning, Implementation and Assessment, Internship Guide Subcommittee, of the UFS Undergraduate Academic Programs and Policies Committee, 2016.

The State University of New York University Faculty Senate adopted *Internships: A Guide for Planning, Implementation, and Assessment* on April 28, 2007. The State University of New York Faculty Council of Community Colleges adopted *Internships: A Guide for Planning, Implementation, and Assessment* on September 17, 2007.

Baccalaureate Internship Manual

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part I: Introduction		
Definition		3
Student Eligibility and Preparation		4
Internship Requirements for Bachelor Degree Program		4
Eligibility Application		5
Roles and Responsibilities		6
Part II: Planning		7
Student Compensation		7
Site Selection		7
Faculty Guide for Internships		8
Financial Aid and Student Health Insurance		9
Internship Learning Agreement		
	9	
Affiliation Agreement		15
Scheduling and Substitutions		21
Course Substitution Form		22
Request for Late Registration for Internship		24
Part III: Implementation		
Faculty-Student Communication during the Internship		25
Faculty Site Visitation Guide	26	
With drawal (or Torreination from Cita)	26	27
Withdrawal (or Termination from Site) Reports from the Internship Site		28
Site Supervisor Evaluation Form-Periodic		29
Student Evaluation Form – Periodic		31
Student Evaluation Form - Lenouic		31
Part IV: Conclusion		
Grading		32
Faculty Reimbursement		32
Site Supervisor Evaluation Form –Final		33
Student Evaluation Form-Final		36
Internship Site Assessment Form		38
Part V: Internship Program Assessment		
Appendix:		
A. Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)		40
B. Sexual Harassment Reporting		
41		
C. Unemployment Insurance and Student Interns, resources and works cited 42		

Part I: Introduction

At the State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology at Cobleskill the majority of baccalaureate degrees culminate with a capstone internship. This credit bearing internship is generally a semester long and required for graduation.

For students, internships offer valuable learning opportunities outside the classroom setting. Internships also serve as a bridge between the traditional academic setting and the professional world to which the student aspires. These opportunities also provide students with a venue to apply their classroom education in a real-world work experience, under both employer and faculty supervision.

For the academic institution, internships offer a rich array of opportunities for faculty development, positive college/community relationships, and interaction with professional communities throughout the state, country and world. Internship supervision may serve as a particularly fruitful means of faculty development, giving faculty face-to-face contact and exchange with the professional world most closely related to a faculty member's academic expertise.

For the organization that serves as the setting for the internship experience, internships offer an opportunity to contribute directly to the educational and developmental growth of participating students. The internship can also foster a useful relationship between the sponsoring organization and the academic institution in which both parties benefit through shared knowledge, resources and goals.

Definition

Internships discussed in this guide will be limited to those academic experiences for which a student earns academic credit in an agreed upon, supervised work experience related to a student's baccalaureate major. Credit is awarded to the student by the college on the recommendation of the faculty supervisor.

Internships are considered experiential learning and occur when students are placed in a real-world environment where they collaborate with others, using skills such as critical thinking, problem solving, communication and teamwork. Experiential learning is an integral part of SUNY Cobleskill's mission, and to state it simply, "real life, real learning" is experiential learning. Internship opportunities are offered to help prepare students for future employment.

Student Eligibility and Preparation

To be eligible for the baccalaureate internship, students must meet all institutional and degree requirements. Students pay tuition, as with any other course. Students must have the internship Eligibility Application approved with signatures from appropriate parties and submitted to the school secretary to keep on file until it is later attached to the Internship Learning Agreement (ILA). The baccalaureate internship program requires advanced standing as a matriculated student in the college with active, enrolled student status. Specific course requirements, determined by the supervising academic department as well as by internship sites, may require students to have specific academic and professional skills. (See chart below for departmental requirements.)

Internship Requirements for Bachelor Degree Internship Program

Department	Prerequisites	Credits Awarded/Hours
Agricultural Business/ Animal Science	90 credits 2.0 overall GPA 380 Internship Orientation class	Ag. Bus. 12 credits/ 480 hours
	ooo internorap Crienador Caso	An. Sci. 15/ 600 hours
Agricultural Engineering Technology	85-90 credits 2.0 overall GPA Internship Orientation class	15 credits/600 hours
Applied Psychology	Students need to have completed ALL other requirements for graduation 2.5 GPA or better overall GPA	12 credits/480 hours
Biotechnology	Minimum 2.5 major field GPA and 2.5 overall GPA Normally reserved for senior students BIOL364 Biotechnology, BIOL 410 and a minimum of one additional course at the 200 level or above in Plant Sciences, Animal Sciences or Fisheries and Wildlife.	6 credits/270 hours
Business, FSMA and Information Technology	24 credits of upper-level coursework 2.5 major field GPA	12 credits/405 hours
Communications	2.0 overall GPA	3 credits/135 hours
Culinary Arts	90 credits 2.0 GPA CAHT 380 / CAHT 485 taken concurrently	12 credits/480 hours
Early Childhood	All Early Childhood courses completed with no more than 2 Upper Level LAS courses remaining and 2.5 overall GPA.	12 credits / 450 hours
Environmental and Energy Technologies	90 credits and 2.0 overall GPA.	12 credits/600 hours
Wildlife Management	90 credits and 2.0 overall GPA.	15 credits/600

		hours
Graphic Design Technology	2.5 overall GPA with 60 credits completed. May be taken incrementally over the last two years of study. Faculty approval required.	3 credits/135 hours
Plant Science/Landscape Contracting/Turf	90 credits and 2.0 overall GPA.	15/600 hours

Note: All programs have specific course requirements, such as Internship Orientation, that must be satisfied prior to internship. Contact department chairs for these specific requirements. All students are expected to be in good academic standing prior to the internship.

The Internship Eligibility Application below can be found on the CCD website:

https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/pdfs/Internships_EligibilityApplication.pdf



State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program ELIGIBILITY APPLICATION

Submit this form, completed and signed, to your department chair by October 1st for Spring Internship; March 1st for Summer Internship; or May 1st for Fall Internship. Type or print clearly.

Student Name:		800 #:
Campus Address:		
Home Address:		
Academic Major:		Phone: () -
Term Desired:	Preferred Em	ail:
Overall GPA:		
Are internship course p	orerequisites completed? Yes 🕳	No 🕳
Have you applied to a	specific site yet? Yes 🕳	No 🕳
If yes, please give na	ame:	
If no, what type are		
What are your specific	career goals, and how do you see an internsh	ip helping you achieve these goals?
Student: I have review	wed my DegreeWorks degree evaluation and	am eligible to apply for a Bachelor Degree
Internship.		
S	tudent Intern Signature	Date
	o de la companya de	
5	ve reviewed the degree evaluation with my a	·
	rerequisites and all other qualifications and is	, therefore, eligible to be considered for the
Bachelor Degree Intern	ship for the semester requested.	
Fa	culty Advisor Signature	 Date
Fa	iculty Advisor Signature	Date

Department Chair: I ce	rtify that the above named student has met o	departmental course prerequisites and all
other qualifications and i	s, therefore, eligible to be considered for the	Bachelor Degree Internship for the semester
requested.		
	·	·
Depar	tment Chair Signature	Date

Roles and Responsibilities

For an internship to be successful, the intern, faculty supervisor and site supervisor must collaborate. The Internship Learning Agreement (ILA) provides a template for the student, site supervisor and faculty supervisor to develop and establish the objectives and activities that the intern will work on throughout the internship. Students are responsible for developing objectives for the ILA and seeking approval from their faculty supervisor for internship. Faculty supervisors must approve the completed ILA prior to site supervisors' signing the document. Students need to communicate effectively with both their faculty and site supervisors throughout the internship. The ILA also lists the broad internship "student learning outcomes (SLOs)" for the student's major field of study. The responsibilities of the intern, faculty supervisor and site supervisor listed as follows:

Intern Responsibilities:

- Obtain approval from the faculty supervisor or the faculty member designated to approve internships in the department granting the credit for the proposed internship and site;
- Work with the faculty supervisor to complete the Internship Learning Agreement, obtain appropriate signatures, and submit by the deadline;
- Satisfy all financial obligations for the internship including tuition and fees;
- Perform to the best of ability those tasks assigned by the site supervisor which are related to the learning objectives and to the responsibilities of the internship position;
- Abide by SUNY Cobleskill Student Conduct Code and academic policies, and follow all the rules, regulations and normal requirements of the internship site;
- Complete the academic requirements outlined in this ILA under the guidance of my faculty supervisor;
- Notify the faculty and site supervisors of any changes I need to make to this agreement or of any concerns or problems that may develop during the on-the-job experience;
- Terminate my participation only after discussing my concerns with my faculty supervisor and providing notice, when possible, to the site supervisor.
- Complete both the periodic and final evaluation forms in a timely manner;
- Return to campus for a final internship presentation and reporting.

Faculty Supervisor Responsibilities:

• Keep in contact with the student (a minimum of 3 substantive contacts during internship) to provide guidance, support and evaluation;

- Visit the internship site (if possible) and contact the site supervisor at least four times
 during the semester to discuss the student's performance (using the most appropriate
 means of communication);
- Assess the student's learning based upon internship duties, a daily journal or log, communication with the site supervisor, the site supervisor's periodic and final evaluations, completed activities required by the department including specified hours at the site, and the final student paper or other assignments. Submit appropriate paperwork for final credit and grades.

Site Supervisor Responsibilities:

- Clearly discuss the requirements of the internship with the student intern;
- Work with the student to complete on-site goals, duties and learning objectives;
- Provide ongoing supervision and feedback to the student on his/her performance;
- Communicate with the faculty supervisor and meet with him/her during the site visit or through any correspondence;
- Complete the periodic and final evaluations of the student's performance.

Part II: Planning

Academic departments and institutions that offer internships have a responsibility to assure effective internship supervision. The faculty supervisor should be a full-time member of the department from which the internship is offered and should be qualified to supervise the internship in the respective subject area, but exceptions may occur as determined by the department. Department faculty will determine which faculty will serve as supervisors for internships.

Student Compensation

While focusing on the quality of the internship and academic components of the learning experience, SUNY Cobleskill allows students to engage in paid or unpaid internships.

Site Selection

A good internship site will provide the student with practical experience in the student's area of academic interest. The site's personnel should provide mentoring and instruction to the student as part of the student's internship. Designated faculty will work with students to find internship sites and site supervisors suitable to the student's goals and the department's academic criteria.

There are several ways to locate acceptable internship sites:

A. Students are responsible for researching, identifying, and finding possible internship opportunities. This activity will help students identify their own career goals and the manner in which they may best be achieved, and it will also help students learn career preparation skills that will be useful after graduation. Students may seek internships at sites already listed by the college as participating businesses/agencies or propose one found campus resources including faculty, Advisors, the Center for Career

Development staff, the Office for International Education, the Internship Orientation course instructor, professional acquaintances or Internet research. All internship opportunities must be reviewed and approved by appropriate faculty prior to the student accepting an offer for internship.

- B. A business/agency may solicit a department for participation in the program. Those wishing to host an intern may be asked to submit a proposal describing the responsibilities and activities that would be assigned to an intern.
- C. Faculty may use professional contacts to solicit internships at appropriate sites.
- D. Assistance for students looking for potential internship opportunities is available on the Center for Career Development website.

A site visit is highly recommended prior to accepting the business/agency participation in the internship program.

Faculty Guide for Student Interns

The Faculty Guide for Student Interns can be found at:

https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/pdfs/Internships_FacultyGuide.pdf



State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program FACULTY GUIDE FOR STUDENT INTERNS

Students are paired with a Faculty Advisor for internship in one of the following ways:

- 1. For programs that have a required Internship Orientation course, at the end of the course they are "assigned" to a faculty supervisor for internship or asked to "find" a faculty member from their department to serve as faculty supervisor. This course guides students through the internship search phase and provides information about the Internship Eligibility Application, possible settings, contacting employers, objectives to be fulfilled during internship and the Internship Learning Agreement (ILA).
- 2. For programs without the Internship Orientation course students are required to seek a faculty member in their major to serve as a faculty supervisor.

One semester prior to internship:

1.	Students complete Eligibility Application to appropriate parties (faculty advisor and department chair) for signature and approval (October 1 for spring internship, March 1 for summer internship and May 1 for fall internship) and submit to school secretary to keep on file to be attached later to the ILA.
2.	The faculty supervisor must approve the internship site prior to the students accepting an offer.
3.	Faculty supervisors work with students to provide guidance to assist students in designing objectives and activities for the internship and approve their Internship Learning Agreement (ILA). The ILA is posted on the Center for Career Development website at: https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/manuals-forms.aspx
	On the website, students select the ILA on the list with the prefix for their major. Deadlines for submission of Internship Learning Agreement: Dec. 1 for spring; May 1 for summer; Aug. 1 for fall The ILA must be signed by the student and faculty supervisor prior to forwarding it to the site supervisor for signature.
4.	If internship is UNPAID or offers a stipend the school secretary completes an Affiliation Agreement and submits to the site supervisor for signature. The Affiliation Agreement allows the College to provide these interns with liability coverage at the site. Only interns who are paid an hourly wage will be exempt from this form.
5.	Students obtain signatures from the faculty supervisor first and then from the site supervisor. Students return the completed ILA to the school secretary.
6.	The school secretary attaches the Eligibility Application (and the Affiliation Agreement if needed) to the signed ILA and forwards to the Dean and the Vice President of Academic Affairs for approval and signature. The school secretary registers the student for the appropriate internship course after receiving the signature of the VPAA.

Financial Aid and Student Health Insurance

Students preparing to engage in an internship that will result in a total course load of less than 12 credits (thus dropping the student below full-time status if not enrolled in additional courses) should check with their financial aid advisors to determine their eligibility for financial aid and with their health insurers to determine whether insurance coverage applies to the internship.

Internship Learning Agreement (ILA)

The Internship Learning Agreement (ILA) is an arrangement between the student intern, the faculty supervisor and the site supervisor to identify the learning objectives and activities that will be part of the internship and will include the established student learning outcomes (SLOs). Students are not permitted to have related family members, such as mother/father, aunt/uncle, sister/brother, serve as their site supervisor for internship.

As with all credit-bearing courses, student learning outcomes (SLOs) have been predetermined for all internships by the faculty within each department. These SLOs for internships reflect institutional goals relating to communication, cognitive and personal skills the faculty expects students to demonstrate, as well as more discipline-specific goals at the departmental level. The SLOs are listed on the ILA.

Internship objectives and activities should be specifically designed for individual internships to help accomplish stated learning outcomes. During the internship experience, both faculty and site supervisors will monitor the intern's activities.

The ILA must be completed and signed prior to the start of the internship. The student is responsible for submitting the completed and signed ILA to the appropriate school secretary and should follow the deadlines listed in the ILA. ILA's will NOT be processed after 14 days into a given semester or summer. If a student wishes to file an ILA after the 14-day deadline, the student can file a Request for Late Registration for Internship form, which can be found on the CCD website under "Manuals and Forms" tab:

https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/pdfs/Request_for_Late%20_Registration_for_Internship.pdf

When the student submits a signed ILA, the school secretary will attach the approved Eligibility Application to the ILA and forward the forms to the Dean and then the VPAA's office for signature. Upon approval and return of the forms, the secretary will register the student in the internship course. (An affiliation agreement is required when an internship is not being paid an hourly wage. See next section, "Affiliation Agreement," for details.)

The VPAA's Office will forward a copy of the signed ILA to the Center for Career Development (CCD) and a record will be kept of all approved ILA's, by semester. The CCD is responsible for generating the online periodic and final evaluations to the student intern and the site supervisor half way through and again just prior to the completion of the internship. Faculty can access the evaluations on Forms Stack with the link provided by the CCD.

The CCD will archive the evaluation data approximately 6 weeks after the close of each semester or summer and send it to the Deans. The Deans will make the data available for faculty for the purposes of program review.

The Internship Learning Agreements can be found at:

https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/manuals-forms.aspx



State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program (SAMPLE) INTERNSHIP LEARNING AGREEMENT (ILA) Between

	and	
(Student)	(Business/ Agency)	
Internship Eligibility Application m		
te supervisors, and returning the c	completed ILA to the academic department prior to the	
,		1
redits to be earned for internship: _	credits	
,	, 1	
rnship: to (month/day/year)	PAID (month/day/year)	
	responsible for TYPING all inform te supervisors, and returning the che internship. The school secretarint may be terminated for just cause a two-week notice, where circum edits to be earned for internship:	(Student) (Business/Agency) Internship Eligibility Application must be approved (attach copy). responsible for TYPING all information on the ILA, seeking signatures only from the te supervisors, and returning the completed ILA to the academic department prior to the ne internship. The school secretaries enroll students in the appropriate internship course. Int may be terminated for just cause by any of the persons signing this agreement, and each a two-week notice, where circumstances permit, to all other parties prior to termination. Redits to be earned for internship: credits In which you are seeking credit (Circle one): Spring Summer Fall Year 20 match time period in which most or all of internship is underway. In the prior to the prior to the period in which most or all of internship is underway. In the prior to the prior to the period in which most or all of internship is underway.

Important Reminders:

- 1. The faculty supervisor or the faculty member designated to approve internships in the department from which one is seeking credit is the ONLY person who can give initial approval of an internship for academic credit.
- 2. To ensure proper internship credit, the Internship Learning Agreement (ILA) MUST be completed and signed by the student, faculty supervisor, and site supervisor. It is the student's responsibility to obtain the site supervisor's signature **after** the faculty supervisor's signature has been obtained. The faculty supervisor then attaches the Eligibility Application to the ILA and returns it to the school secretary of the department granting credit. The

school secretary obtains signatures from first the dean, and then the VPAA. Upon receipt of the VPAA signature, the school secretary will register the student for the internship.

3. **DEADLINES** for submission of Internship Learning Agreement: Dec. 1 for spring semester internship; May 1 for summer; Aug. 1 for fall semester.

NOTE: If a student secures an internship after these deadlines have passed, he/she needs to immediately contact the faculty supervisor to seek approval for the internship. If deadlines are passed, a late fee may be applied.

Internship Student Learning Outcomes (Sample) AGRN450:

- Demonstrate/develop competency in applied mathematics.
- Demonstrate competency in written and oral communications.
- Demonstrate/develop leadership ability by supervising assigned tasks and projects.
- Demonstrate self-direction and initiative in performing assigned duties.
- Demonstrate/develop strong work ethic by working additional time or outside typical working hours as needed.

Internship Objectives and Activities:

List objectives of the internship and specific activities to be completed. Indicate approximate amount of time to be devoted to each activity. Be as specific as possible. (The faculty supervisor will provide guidance in initial preparation of this section with input from the site supervisor.)

Form reviewed by (please initial) Student: _	Faculty Supervisor: Site Supervisor:
	STUDENT INTERN
Student Name:	
Phone:	
Email:	Anticipated Date of Graduation:
TT	
Major:	Degree:
Term/year* in which you are seeking credit	Degree: : to a all of interpolar is underway.
* Term must match time period in which mos	t or all of internship is underway.
INTERN RESPONSIBILITIES:	
As a student seeking credit for an internship expe	
	rvisor or the faculty member designated to approve internships in the
 department granting the credit for the p Work with my faculty supervisor to contain 	mplete the Internship Learning Agreement, obtain appropriate
signatures, and submit by the deadline	
 Satisfy all financial obligations for the i 	
	tasks assigned by my site supervisor which are related to my learning
objectives and to the responsibilities of	
	nduct Code and academic policies, and follow all the rules, regulations
and normal requirements of the interns	
	utlined in this ILA under the guidance of my faculty supervisor;
	of any changes I need to make to this agreement or of any concerns or
problems that may develop during the	
	discussing my concerns with my faculty supervisor and providing
notice, when possible, to the site superv	
 Complete both the periodic and final ex 	
 Return to campus for a final internship 	presentation and reporting.
Student Signature:	Date:
1	FACULTY SUPERVISOR
(This section must be completed and signe	d by the faculty supervisor or designated departmental representative)
Faculty Supervisor Name:	
Title/Department:	
Primary Contact Phone:	
Office Phone:	
Lingii,	
Department/Office:	

FACULTY SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES:

Academic Criteria: See the department's Internship Syllabus/Course Description for specific academic requirements.

As a Faculty Internship supervisor, I agree to

- Keep in contact with the student (a minimum of 3 substantive contacts during internship) to provide guidance, support and evaluation;
- Visit the internship site (if possible) and contact the site supervisor at least four times during the semester to discuss the student's performance (using the most appropriate means of communication);
- Assess the student's learning based upon internship duties, a daily journal or log, communication with the
 site supervisor, the site supervisor's evaluation, completed activities required by the department including
 specified hours at the site, and the final student paper or other assignments. Review online student and site
 evaluations and communicate appropriately. Submit appropriate paperwork for final credit and grades.

Faculty Supervisor Signature:	Date:
INTERN	NSHIP SITE SUPERVISOR
SUNY Cobleskill greatly appreciates you hosting our success. Site Supervisor Name:	gned by the site supervisor or appropriate site representative) r intern. Your role is integral to the student's internship experience and
Business/Agency Name:	
Address:	
Title/Dept.: Email:	Phone: Fax:
SITE SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES:	
 As a site supervisor for this internship, I agree to: Clearly discuss the requirements of the int Work with the student to complete on-site Provide ongoing supervision and feedbach Communicate with the faculty supervisor Complete both the periodic and final evaluation 	e goals, duties and learning objectives; k to the student on his/her performance; and meet with him/her during the site visit;
Site Supervisor Signature:	Date:
For College Use Only:	
As authorized representatives of the State University the above agreement between listed parties.	of New York, College of Agriculture & Technology at Cobleskill, I approve
Dean Signature:	Date:
VP for Academic Affairs Signature:	Date:

Affiliation Agreement

A written affiliation agreement between the college and the site is required when an internship is unpaid or offers a stipend. No Affiliation Agreement is required when interns are <u>paid an hourly</u> wage.

Procedure for completing Affiliation Agreements:

- 1. The faculty supervisor, site supervisor and student sign the completed Internship Learning Agreement (ILA).
- 2. The ILA indicates a "paid" or "unpaid" internship. If "unpaid", or if the student is receiving a stipend in lieu of an hourly wage, an Affiliation Agreement form must be completed, signed and processed.
- 3. Affiliation Agreement forms are completed by the school secretary (as determined by each department) and emailed to the site supervisor for signature. It is then faxed or scanned back to the school secretary. It is the secretary's responsibility to follow up and facilitate return of the signed agreement. The secretaries inform the faculty supervisor and the student intern that the student may not begin the internship without the completion of the Affiliation Agreement process. As soon as the signed Affiliation Agreement is received it should be forwarded to the CCD for processing through SUNY Administration.
- 4. The school secretary sends the ILA, first to the appropriate Dean and then onto the Vice President for Academic Affairs (VPAA) for review and signature. The VPAA's office sends copies of the ILA to the Center for Career Development for processing. The VPAA's office will return the signed original ILA to the school secretary.
- 5. The Center for Career Development is responsible for completing an Affiliation Contract and submitting it to SUNY. Within 10 business days an Insurance Certificate in the name of the employer/site is issued. The CCD emails the Insurance Certificate to the school secretary immediately upon receipt. It is the secretary's responsibility to notify the student, site supervisor and faculty supervisor that the student may begin the internship.
- 6. Student interns are NOT permitted to begin an internship until the Affiliation Agreement has been processed and the site has received a copy of the Insurance Certificate.

The Affiliation Agreement is available to the school secretaries as they are responsible for

completion and submission to employers for signature.

AFFILIATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN AND STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK College at Cobleskill

	This Agre	ement is mad	le by an	d between							,
a	corporation	organized	and	existing	under	the	laws	of	the	State	of
		,v	vith	its	princip	al	office	;	loca	ted	at
_						((hereinat	ter	referre	ed to	as
"A	ffiliate") and 1	the State Un	iversity	of New Y	ork, an	educati	ional con	rpora	tion or	ganize	d and
ex	isting under th	e laws of th	e State	of New Y	ork, and	having	g its prin	ncipa	l place	of bus	siness
100	cated at Univer	sity Plaza, A	lbany, l	New York	12246, fo	r and	on behal	f of t	he Can	npus lo	cated
at	106 Suffolk Ci	rcle, Coblesk	ill, NY	12043 (her	einafter r	eferred	l to as "U	Jnive	rsity").		
	WHERE	AS, Universi	ty has	undertaken	an educ	cationa	l progra	ım ir	the d	liscipli	ne of
		; and									
	WHEREA	AS, Universit	y and	Affiliate de	esire to h	ave an	associa	tion	for the	purpo	se of
cai	rying out said	educational p	rogram								
	NOW, TH	HEREFORE,	it is agr	eed that:							
1.	The Unive	ersity shall as	ssume f	ull responsi	bility for	planni	ing and e	execu	ting its	educa	tional
pro	ogram in the d	liscipline of						inclu	ding pr	ogram	ming,
adı	ministration,	curriculum c	content,	faculty a	ppointme	ents, f	aculty	admii	nistratio	on and	the
rec	quirements for	matriculation	ı, prom	otion and g	raduation	, and s	shall bea	r all	costs a	nd exp	enses
in	connection th	herewith. Th	e Univ	ersity furt	hers agr	ees to	coordin	nate	the pr	ogram	with
Af	filiate's design	ee. Attached	as Exh	ibit B is a c	copy of th	e curri	culum.				
2.	The Unive	ersity shall be	e respon	sible for as	signing s	tudents	s to the A	Affilia	ate for	practic	al
ex	perience. Uni	iversity shall	notify	the Affilia	ate one ((1) mo	nth in a	idvan	ice of	the pla	anned
scl	nedule of stude	ent assignmer	nts to p	ractical dut	ies includ	ling th	e dates,	num	ber of	student	s and
ins	structors. The	schedule shal	l be sub	ject to writ	ten appro	val by	the Affi	liate.			
3.	The University	ersity, at its s	sole cos	t and exper	nse, shall	provid	le faculty	y as r	nay be	require	ed for
	the teaching	ng and super	vision o	f students a	ssigned t	o the A	Affiliate 1	for pr	actical	experi	ence.

The University agrees that at all times students and faculty members are subject to the

4.

supervision of the Affiliate and are considered part of the Affiliate's workforce only for purposes of access to and disclosure of protected health information ("PHI"). as defined by 45 CFR 164.501 only. University shall inform students and faculty that they must comply with all rules applicable to both students and faculty while at the Affiliate's facility, and that failure to comply shall constitute a cause for terminating such student's assignment to or such faculty member's relationship with the Affiliate. The Affiliate will provide copies of all policies and procedures to the students and faculty members. The University and Affiliate agree to cooperate with one another's operational, regulatory, licensure and accreditation requirements including but not limited to related surveys, audits and other reviews.

- 5. Students and faculty members shall respect the confidential nature of all information that they have access to in accordance with the policies and procedures of the University and the Affiliate. The University and Affiliate acknowledge that students and faculty may use patients' personal health information for educational purposes at the Affiliate and as permitted by HIPAA. Information removed from the Affiliate for educational use must be appropriately de-identified as that term is defined in 164.514. Information removed for other puposes as permitted by HIPAA must be removed in a manner approved in writing by the Hospital prior to removal. Identifiable information removed as permitted by HIPAA may not be used beyond the original purpose unless appropriately de-identified as that term is defined in 45 CFR 164.514. Identifiable information as removed by HIPAA must be destroyed or rendered de-identifiable as soon as practicable once the original purpose for the removal has been satisfied.
- 6. The Affiliate may terminate any student's or faculty member's assignment from the Affiliate when a student or faculty member is unacceptable to the Affiliate for reasons of health, performance, or for other reasons which, in the Affiliate's reasonable judgment and to the extent allowed by law, cause the continued presence of such student or faculty member at the Affiliate not to be in the best interest of the Affiliate. Any such action will be reported by the Affiliate to the University orally and in writing.
- 7. The Affiliate, as it deems necessary and proper, shall make available for student experience classrooms and other facilities, including equipment and supplies, libraries, and cafeteria facilities, consistent with its current policies in regard to availability. The Affiliate shall also provide orientation for the College faculty and students.

- 8. The Affiliate shall have no responsibility for the transportation of faculty or students.
- 9. Except as set forth in Paragraph 4 of this Agreement, students and faculty members shall not be deemed to be employees, servants or agents of the Affiliate, but shall be considered invitees. Neither party shall pay the other any compensation or benefits pursuant to this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that the Affiliate is not providing any insurance, professional or otherwise, covering any students or faculty members.
- 10. The University agrees that it shall secure Workers' Compensation Insurance for the benefit of all faculty and other University employees required to be insured by Workers' Compensation Law, and shall maintain such coverage throughout the duration of this Agreement. For the purposes of Workers' Compensation Law, no student or faculty member is to be considered an employee, servant or agent of the Affiliate.
- 11. Subject to the availability of lawful appropriations and consistent with the New York State Court of Claims Act, University shall hold the Affiliate harmless from and indemnify it for any final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction for the University's failure to perform its obligations hereunder or to the extent attributable to the negligence of the University or of its officers or employees when acting within the course and scope of this Agreement.
- 12. The Affiliate shall fully indemnify, defend and save the University, its officers, employees and agents harmless, without limitation, from and against any and all damages, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), claims, judgments, liabilities, losses, awards, and costs which may finally be assessed against the University in any action for or arising out of or related to this Agreement. The state of New York reserves the right to join in any such claim, demand or suit, at its sole expense, when it determines there is an issue involving a significant public interest.
- 13. University shall maintain during the term of this Agreement liability insurance, in amounts not less than \$3,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit; and the Affiliate is to be additionally named insured under such liability policy or policies. The persons insured under such policy or policies shall be the students of the State University of New York with respect to liability arising out of their participation in the program carried out under this Agreement. The University's faculty members are covered by the defense and indemnification provisions of section 17 of the Public Officers Law with respect to liability arising out of their participation in the clinical program carried out under this Agreement. The

University agrees to notify the Affiliate in writing no less than ten (10) days written notice prior to the cancellation, modification or non-renewal of any insurance coverage. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Affiliate shall remain liable for direct damages resulting from its negligence.

- 14. It is mutually agreed that neither party shall discriminate against any student, faculty member, or employee based upon color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, veteran status and/or handicap.
- 15. The provisions of Exhibit A, State University of New York standard contract clauses, attached hereto, are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and made part hereof. The laws of the State of New York will govern this Agreement, without regard for New York's choice of law statute. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the following order of precedence shall apply: (1) Exhibit A; (2) this Agreement.
- 16. The effective date of this Agreement shall be _____ and shall continue in full force and effect until terminated as set forth in this paragraph. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other, provided, however, that no such termination shall take effect until the students already placed in the program have completed their scheduled clinical training.
- 17. For purposes of written notification:

To the UNIVERSITY

	106 Suffolk Circle Cobleskill, NY 12043
To the	Affiliate
	(Name & address of Affiliate-Employer)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below:

By: Susan Zimmermann, Ph.D. Provost
SUNY Cobleskill
Knapp Hall, 202
106 Suffolk Circle
Cobleskill, NY 12043

By:

(Name of Site Supervisor, followed by exact address of Affiliate-Employer)

Date

Signature

Scheduling and Substitutions

Scheduling: A student will be registered for an internship course once the ILA is completed, approved and signed by the VPAA and submitted to the school office. The school secretary will then enroll the student in the internship course. Registrations cannot be processed if a student has a "hold" or if a student's status is inactive. Please refer all students with holds to the Student Accounts Office. Students with inactive student status should contact the Admissions Office for reinstatement. Once the hold has been resolved or the student is reinstated with active status, the student will be registered. However, students only have until the **fourteenth day** of the current semester to be registered for internship. If student finds an internship site after the **fourteenth day** of the semester they will have to wait to begin until the opening of the next semester or summer or complete a Request for Late Registration for Internship. https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/pdfs/Request_for_Late%20_Registration_for_Internship.pdf (See page 24 of this manual for the form or the CCD website under "Manuals and Forms" tab.)

Students having difficulty finding an internship for a specific semester may request an "Academic Leave" utilizing the "Academic Leave form" which can be found in the Registrar's Office. This "academic leave" status will postpone repayment of student loans for one semester and the student will not have to reinstate with the Admissions Office for the following semester.

Internship Course Substitutions: Coursework taken as a substitution for an internship must be recorded. The new Course Substitution Form must be used to outline a student's individual internship plans and can be found on the Registrar's web page under "Forms"). https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/registrar/forms.aspx

The courses must be 300/400 level courses. Students may not use courses taken in previous semesters to count towards their internship. Approval for course substitution for part of the internship must be completed by mid-term in the semester preceding the internship. The_"Course Substitution Form" requires students to submit this form for each semester they are registering for courses to be used in place of internship.

To request credits for "life experience or previous work experience" the new Course—Substitution Form must be completed along with a written statement outlining how their previous work experience meets the learning goals they would have accomplished on internship. Students must provide a written statement (2 typed pages) and attach it to the course substitution form and submit it for approval to the academic advisor, department chair, Dean and VPAA. In some cases, a maximum of 6 credits for life experiences may be granted. Any exceptions to this will need VPAA approval. Students will need to be registered for these "life experiences/previous work experiences"

Incomplete – A grade of "Incomplete - I" must be submitted with a letter grade by the seventh week of the following semester or summer. If paperwork is not submitted to change the "I" or extend the incomplete (which needs approval from a Dean) by the seventh week of the semester, the "I" grade becomes an "F" grade. If a student receives an "I" for a baccalaureate internship they are considered "enrolled" for the semester in which they completed the internship and received the grade of "I", and they are not considered enrolled for the following

semester or summer. An extension for a grade of "I" must be approved by the internship faculty supervisor and the Dean. Faculty supervisors complete a "Change of Grade" form to extend the "I".



State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program COURSE SUBSTITUTION FORM (First) Student Name (Last) 800 Student ID# Email Major/Degree **GPA** ☐ I am requesting _____ credits of internship "waiver" for related work experience be granted toward the internship requirement (6 credit max.) and understand that I will need to be registered for these credits. Student must submit a written report of their prior learning experience. ☐ I am requesting ____ credits of partial internship, which I will need to be registered for and need to have completed the required ILA. ☐ The remainder of the internship will be completed by substituting ____ credits of course(s) listed below. ☐ I am requesting a substitution of course work for my internship. Approval for course substitution for part of the internship must be completed by mid-term in the semester preceding the internship. For requests of course substitutions for partial credits and for course work only, complete the section below. Fall Course(s) Spring ____ Course(s) Summer Course(s)

According to the Middle States Commission on Higher Education courses, programs, and other learning experiences are judged on their learning outcomes, using valid evaluation measures. College level learning is defined for the granting of credit for transfer of prior learning or advanced placement secondary learning, and it is clear that credit is awarded for learning, not experience.

racement secondary learning, and it is clear tha	at credit is awarded	for learning, not ex	xperience.
For faculty completion:			
Describe setting in which student's prior learni of internship only) :	ing was accomplish	ed (for waiver	
Describe measure used to evaluate student's pr satisfies "Student Learning Outcomes" for inte		olio of work or writ	ten report) that
Please attach the portfolio or written report sul	mitted by student	co that all parties s	ianina
document can review.	omitted by student	so that all parties si	igimig
Student Signature	_		
	□ Approved	□ Disapproved	
Advisor Signature	_		Date
	□ Approved	□ Disapproved	
Department Chair Signature	_		Date
	□ Approved	□ Disapproved	
School Dean Signature	_		Date
	□ Approved -	□ Disapproved	
Vice President for Academic Affairs Signature			Date

Request for Late Registration for Internship

Please type all information requested. Print the form, obtain the appropriate signatures and submit to the Registrar's Office for processing. Note: Any unauthorized changes, altered dates or forged signatures will result in disciplinary action.

Sections 1 and 2 must be completed BEFORE obtaining the Dean's signature.

Student ID#:
Local Phone:
State: Zip:
State: Zip: Course SUBJ/NUMBER:
vare of the deadline is not a valid reason for an
Date:
ort the petition.
Date:
ort the petition. Date:

Part III: Implementation Supervision

Internships require a combined supervisory effort between the SUNY Cobleskill and the internship site. Effective faculty supervision has a direct effect on the quality of the student learning experience. Faculty are required to attend the Internship Professional Development workshop prior to supervising an internship and then once a year from then.

A. Internship supervision is provided by a **faculty supervisor** from the department that offers the internship.

B. An appropriately qualified individual from the site, the **site supervisor**, will supervise the students at each site in consultation with the faculty supervisor from the department. The site supervisor should provide training and mentoring that will benefit the student.

C. If a Faculty Supervisor is unavailable for an extended period, they should appoint another faculty member from their department to cover and leave an email "away message" so interns and site supervisors will know who to contact in their absence.

Faculty-Student Communication during the Internship

The faculty supervisor is required to maintain regular contact with the student intern regarding progress during the entire course of the internship. Contact may be established through e-mail and other electronic communication, telephone, faculty-student meetings, site visits, and/or hard-copy communications. While the frequency of contact may vary, a minimum of 3 substantive contacts are required to provide guidance, support and evaluation to the student intern. At least one site visit is recommended where geographically feasible, during the first half of the internship. The faculty supervisor will contact the site supervisor at least four times during the semester to discuss the student's performance. Upon completion of the internship, student interns will give a presentation on campus including how they achieved their Student Learning Outcomes, internship goals and objectives.

The Faculty Site Visitation Guideline shown below can be found at:

https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/pdfs/Internships_FacultySiteVisitationGuideline.pdf

Name

State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program FACULTY SITE VISITATION GUIDELINE

Nume.		
Internship Site:		
Site Supervisor:		
Internship Site Address:		
Faculty Supervisor:		
Average Number of Hours Worked Per Day: Days Per Week:		
Please answer the following by checking the appropriate box. Comments are appreciate	ed on ba Yes	ck. No
1. Were you able to visit in-depth with the intern and discuss his/her experiences?		
2. Does the intern seem satisfied with the "fit" of the internship to date?		
3. Is the intern gaining knowledge and growing professionally?		
4. Is the intern making progress with the activities and objectives listed in his/her Internship Learning Agreement (ILA)?		
Has the intern encountered any major problems with the internship? If yes, please comment:		
6. Did you have an opportunity to visit with the site supervisor and discuss the internship?		
7. Does the site supervisor seem satisfied?		
8. Is the site supervisor following the objectives from the ILA?		
9. Do you believe the site supervisor is concerned about the intern and the experience he/she is receiving?		
10. Do you believe the intern will complete the requirements listed in the ILA?		
11. Do you believe this will be a successful internship?		
Please answer in detail: 1. List any concerns you have about this internship, the intern, the site supervisor or the 2. Did you discuss altering the internship with the intern or the site supervisor? If so, I		
2. District the state of the st		

- 3. What assignments did you give the intern?
- 4. What have you observed at this site that may be a strong point or a negative feature?
- 5. What problems were you able to solve during your visit?
- 6. When will you be making another contact with the intern and the site supervisor?

General Comments (continue on back):

Q:\7-26-11 Faculty site visitation guideline.docx

Site visits are strongly recommended. Even when the supervisor knows the site and client very well, on-site visits give the student the opportunity to speak with the faculty supervisor about issues that may not have been addressed through e-mail communications. On-site visits also allow the site supervisor to discuss the student's progress toward achieving internship learning outcomes and to understand the importance the academic institution places on supervised and mentored work experiences.

Visits can be conducted by other faculty, business professionals or alumni located near the internship site. When any person other than the assigned faculty supervisor makes visits, the faculty supervisor should select and provide guidance to that individual relating to the visit. The faculty supervisor should provide the ILA and list the internship requirements and learning outcomes.

Withdrawal

Withdrawal from Internship: Course withdrawal from an internship will follow the same guidelines as withdrawal from a full semester course. If students are unable to complete the total number of internship hours required at their current site and are not able to secure another internship by the mid-point of that semester, the student must withdraw.

"Incompletes" will not be allowed for these situations. Students must then register during the next semester for their internship. Students who withdraw or are withdrawn during the timeframes posted by the Student Accounts Office for the appropriate semester will incur the financial liabilities as stipulated. See below for the academic policy associated with withdrawing.

4.24 Withdrawal from Course(s) by Student

A student may withdraw from a course(s) during the first ten weeks of a semester (pro-rated for modular courses) and will receive a grade of "W." After the tenth week, students may not withdraw from courses unless the instructor concerned, the student's advisor, and the dean in the degree program in which the student is enrolled recommend such action to the Provost/VP for Academic Affairs. The recommendations must be in writing with supportive statements as to the extenuating circumstances which warrant the withdrawal. If permitted to withdraw, a grade of "W" will be assigned. (See Section 4.11) Students may not initiate a withdrawal from a developmental course. Developmental courses are those with a course number below 100, for example 098.

4.25 Withdrawal from Courses by Instructor

An instructor may request that the school dean cancel a student's registration in a course because of excessive absences or violation of academic regulations and standards as stated in the course policies or the College academic code. The dean will inform the student in writing citing the reason(s) for the withdrawal. When a student is withdrawn for excessive absence within the first 10 weeks, a grade of "W" will be assigned. After 10 weeks, a grade of "F" may be assigned. A student may be assigned an "F" grade when dismissed from a course as a result of violation of academic integrity.

Withdrawal or Termination from Site

What happens when a student intern is terminated or terminates?

If terminated: Students need to notify their Faculty Supervisor in writing within 48 hours of termination. Faculty will follow up with the site regarding the reason for termination in a timely manner. If the intern has violated our Student Conduct Code, the Faculty Supervisor must file Conduct Board ("C" Board) charges. For the filing procedure, faculty should notify the Director of Judicial Affairs, under the Residential Life Office.

If a student intern is terminated by a site for a conduct code violation and found responsible after board proceedings, the faculty supervisor will be notified, and appropriate action will be taken. An academic deficiency withdrawal may be processed to document the incident.

<u>If intern terminates</u>: Students need to notify their Faculty Supervisor and Site Supervisor prior to resigning or leaving an internship site for any reason. When possible, students should provide notice to the site.

Reports from the Internship Site

Communication will include periodic evaluations from both site supervisors and interns. The Office of Academic Affairs and the Assessment Coordinator will initiate an email at the mid-point (5-7 weeks into internship) and a final evaluation (about 10 days prior to completion of the internship) to site supervisors and interns containing an electronic evaluation form. Faculty Supervisors will receive a LINK via email from the Office of Academic Affairs and the Assessment Coordinator providing them with access to both periodic and final Site Supervisor and Student evaluations, by major. The link will also provide access to a spreadsheet listing the dates evaluations have been sent from the college so that Faculty Supervisors can encourage Site Supervisors and student interns to submit their evaluations, if they have not completed in a timely manner. Faculty will determine that desired student learning outcomes can be or are being achieved in accordance with the original ILA and that academic standards are being maintained as the internship progresses. This may require the faculty and site supervisors to meet to discuss whether mutually agreed-upon objectives are being met.



Bachelor Degree Internship Program SITE SUPERVISOR EVALUATION FORM - PERIODIC

Student:	Business/Agency:					
internship experience closest supervision	ourpose of this assessment is to provide the studer. e. The form should be completed by the internshit of work assignments. Honest and objective communications circle the appropriate rating using the 1 (low) to 4 te.	p site su nents re	pervisor garding t	or the in	ndividu ent's pe	al who has the erformance are
4. Exceptional	Always demonstrates this ability; consistently e	xceeds e	xpectatio	ons		
3. Very Good	Consistently meets expectations; sometimes exc	eeds exp	ectations	i		
2. Satisfactory	Demonstrates basic competency; generally meet	ts expect	ations			
1. Unsatisfactory	Does not demonstrate competency; does not me	et expec	tations			
 Student pos (different for e) 	ompetencies/Program Objectives: sesses basic level of technical skills sach major)We will ask for input and have a competencies to rate for each major. We will ask	4	3	2	1	NA
1.	attor these.	4	3	2	1	NA
2.		4	3	2	1	NA
3.		4	3	2	1	NA
4.		4	3	2	1	NA
6.		4	3	2	1	NA
7.		4	3	2	1	NA
8.		4	3	2	1	NA
9.		4	3	2	1	NA
10. Comments:		4	3	2	1	NA
D W 1111						
B. Work Habits 1. Reports to v	work prepared and as scheduled	4	3	2	1	NA
	positive and professional attitude	4	3	2	1	NA
1	tes appropriate appearance and dress	4	3	2	1	NA
4. Shows good		4	3	2	1	NA
5. Shows initial Comments:	, 0	4	3	2	1	NA
2. Communic	ls and follows instructions ates ideas and concepts clearly in writing	4	3 3	2 2	1	NA NA
	tes effective verbal communication skills	4	3	2	1	NA
	thers in an active and attentive manner	4	3	2	1	NA
Asks questi	ons as necessary to ensure proper job performance	4	3	2	1	NA

Comments:

Q:\Site Supervisor Eval - Periodic form\Site Supervisor Eval-Periodic-00FINAL.docx

C.	Interpersonal Skills						
	1. Relates to co-workers effectively		4	3	2	1	NA
	2. Manages and resolves conflict in an effecti		4	3	2	1	NA
	3. Supports and contributes to a team atmosp		4	3	2	1	NA
	4. Expresses emotions in a manner appropria		4	3	2 2	1	NA
	5. Interacts effectively and appropriately wit6. Accepts constructive criticism and suggest		$rac{4}{4}$	3	2	$1 \\ 1$	NA NA
	6. Accepts constructive criticism and suggest	ions	*	3	2	1	INA
	Comments:						
D.	Professional & Career Development Skills						
	 Seeks to understand personal strengths an 	d weaknesses	4	3	2	1	NA
	2. Exhibits self-motivation	V. 4	4	3	2	1	NA
	3. Demonstrates ability to set appropriate pri		4	3	2	1	NA
	4. Demonstrates good time management skil	Is	$rac{4}{4}$	3	2 2	$\frac{1}{1}$	NA NA
	5. Demonstrates intellectual curiosity		4	3	2	1	NA
	Comments:						
Е.	Overall performance of this intern:						
	Exceptional Very Good	Satisfactory		Unsa	tisfactory	7	
	Comments:						
	Indicate areas where student needs to improve	e performance:					
	List activities that would enhance improveme	ent in these areas:					
	I have discussed this evaluation with the inte	ern YES	NO				
	If no, may we share this information with stu	ident? YES	_ NO				
	Please make any suggestions or comments re	garding this internship):				
	Site Supervisor's Signature	e	0.1			Date	
Site	Supervisor's Name:	Date:					
Inte	rnship Site:	Telep	hone:				
Ema	il Address:						
Tha	nk you for taking the time to complete this eva	aluation. Please mail, e	mail or	fax form	to:		
Facu	ulty Supervisor:	Telephone:		F	AX: (518	3) 255	_
Ema	il:						
State	e University of New York College of Agriculture	e and Technology, Cobl	eskill, N	Y 12043			
If yo	ou choose to send this back electronically, please	send as an attachment	from yo	ur email	account	•	
	•						

Q:\Site Supervisor Eval - Periodic form\Site Supervisor Eval-Periodic-00FINAL.docx



Bachelor Degree Internship Program STUDENT EVALUATION FORM - PERIODIC

Student: Internship Site:		te:	33		Date:		24	
feed exp	oduction: The purpose of this a lback on your internship experie erience. Please circle the appro enever appropriate.	nce. We would apprecia	ite your honest and objectiv	ve comi	nents a	bout yo	ur inte	rnship
	4. Exceptional	3. Very Good	2. Satisfactory	1. U	nsatisfa	ictory		
1.	Rate the quality of your internation to the job and The orientation to the job and The site supervisor's arrangem The training provided The learning experience you have consistency of your internations.	scription provided and to organization ent of a mutually agree ave received from your	he actual internship d-upon work schedule site supervisor	4 4 4 4 4	3 3 3 3 3	2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1	NA NA NA NA NA
	The interactions with coworke The professional and education	rs		4	3	2 2	1 1	NA NA
2.	Explain the main duties you ha internship.	ave performed and respo	onsibilities you have had d	uring th	is perio	d of yo	ur	
3.	What positive experiences can	you share regarding you	ır internship?					
4.	Has this internship site been a	good choice for you? Ex	plain.					
5.	Do you feel your internship wa	as weak in any particula	r area? If so, please provide	e details	i.e			
6.	Did you encounter any problem	ns with your internship	? Please provide details.					
7.	What can you do to improve th	ne remainder of your int	ernship? Please explain.					
8.	Have you had adequate contac	t with your faculty supe	ervisor? Please explain.					
9.	Do you wish to have a meeting	or conversation with y	our faculty supervisor in th	e imme	diate fu	ture?□	Yes□	No
	Stude	nt Signature		12		Dat	e	
	nk you for taking the time to co e University of New York Colleş	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			:			
Fact Ema Fax:		itact Info:						

Q:\Student Eval - Periodic form\Student Evaluation Form - Periodic.docx

Part IV: Conclusion

Upon completion of the internship, the Site Supervisor Evaluation-Final and the Student Evaluation Form-Final must be submitted. Student interns will give a presentation on campus including how they achieved their Student Learning Outcomes, internship goals and objectives.

The Site Supervisor Evaluation Form-Final is shown on page 33. The Student Evaluation Form-Final is shown later on page 36.

Grading

Final grades are submitted electronically through Banner Web by the deadline determined by the Registrar's Office. Mid-term grades are not posted for internships. All internship grades must be submitted within 30 days of the last date of the semester for that student to be considered a graduate for that term. If the internship runs into the next semester the student must fill out the "Academic Leave" form for that next term, which can be obtained through the school offices.

Students completing a baccalaureate internship are enrolled in the internship course during the semester of the internship activity. Proof of enrollment can only be provided for the semester that the student is enrolled in the internship. If a student's internship time period extends into the next semester or summer, no proof of enrollment can be provided.

Faculty Reimbursement

To receive reimbursement faculty supervisors need to:

- 1. Provide oversight to the bachelor degree student internship during the course for the 15 week internship, as described in the manual.
- 2. Apply for approval to travel, prior to an internship site visit, by completing and submitting a Travel Order. Without prior approval from the chair, dean, and Provost, the college may deny reimbursement of expenses.
- 3. Use college vehicles, when available, for internship site visits or mileage reimbursement will not be permitted. Internship sites located greater than 200 miles from the campus may require alternatives to on-site visits. College vehicles must be used if available or mileage reimbursement will be disallowed.
- 4. Upon return, a Travel Voucher must be submitted for reimbursement.
- 5. Faculty who have supervised an intern will notify the School secretary of the intern's name, semester of internship and confirm that a grade has been submitted. The School secretaries will complete an Extra Service Pay form through Interview Exchange to request payment for the faculty member.

6. Have the following on file: an ILA – Internship Learning Agreement signed by the VPAA, Site Supervisor Evaluation Forms, Periodic and Final, and Student Evaluation Forms, Periodic and Final, for the collection of assessment data.

The Internship Site Assessment Form shown below can be found on page 38 of this manual or at: https://www.cobleskill.edu/academics/career-development/pdfs/Internships_SiteAssessmentForm.pdf



State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program SITE SUPERVISOR EVALUATION FORM - FINAL

Student:	Business/Agency:					
internship experience closest supervision of	surpose of this assessment is to provide the student. The form should be completed by the internship of work assignments. Honest and objective communicated the appropriate rating using the 1 (low) to 4 e.	site su ients reg	pervisor garding t	or the in the stud	ndividua ent's pe	al who has the
4. Exceptional	Always demonstrates this ability; consistently ex	xceeds e	xpectatio	ns		
3. Very Good	Consistently meets; sometimes exceeds expectat	ions				
2. Satisfactory	Demonstrates basic competency; generally meet		ations			
1. Unsatisfactory	Does not demonstrate competency; does not med					
A. Professional Co	mpetencies/Program Objectives (different for	•			_	
1.We will ask to rate for	r input and have a different set of competencies to	4	3	2	1	NA
	e will ask the faculty to author these.	4	3	2	1	NA
3.		4	3	2	1	NA
4.		4	3	2	1	NA
5.		4	3	2	1	NA
6.		4	3	2	1	NA
7.		4	3	2	1	NA
8.		4	3	2	1	NA
9.		4	3	2	1	NA
10. Comments:		4	3	2	1	NA
B. Work Habits						
	vork prepared and as scheduled	4	3	2	1	NA
	ositive and professional attitude	4	3	2	1	NA
	es appropriate appearance and dress	4	3	2	1	NA
4. Shows good		4	3	2	1	NA
Shows initial Comments:	tive	4	3	2	1	NA
C. Communication					2.1	
	s and follows instructions	4	3	2	1	NA
	tes ideas and concepts clearly in writing	4	3	2	1	NA
	es effective verbal communication skills	4	3	2	1	NA
	hers in an active and attentive manner	4	3	2	1	3.7.4
Asks questionComments:	ons as necessary to ensure proper job performance	4	3	2	1	NA

Q:\Site Supervisor Eval - Final form\Site Supervisor Eval-FINAL.docx

	Interpersonal Skills 1. Relates to co-workers effectively 2. Manages and resolves conflict in an effective manner 3. Supports and contributes to a team atmosphere 4. Controls emotions in a manner appropriate for work 5. Interacts effectively and appropriately with supervisor 6. Accepts constructive criticism and advice Comments:	3 3 3 3 3 3	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 I 1 I 1 I 1 I	NA NA NA NA NA				
	Professional & Career Development Skills 1. Seeks to understand personal strengths and weaknesses 2. Self-motivated 3. Demonstrates ability to set appropriate priorities 4. Demonstrates good time management skills 5. Demonstrates intellectual curiosity Comments:	3 3 3 3	2 2 2 2 2	1 I 1 I	NA NA NA				
	Overall performance of student intern: Exceptional Very Good Satisfactory Unsat Comments:	isfactory							
	I have discussed this evaluation with the intern YES NO Comments: If you had a position available would you consider hiring this student? YES NO Were you and your intern able to follow the objectives and activities listed in the Internship Learning Agreement? YES NO								
	INTERNSHIP PROGRAM EVALUATION Please answer the following with an "X" in the appropriate area. Comments are encouraged.								
		Ye	c	Uncertain	No				
1.	Did you have a positive experience with the internship program?	1		22	110				
2.	Would you like to participate in the internship program again?								
3.	Were you able to maintain an open line of communication with your intern's								
	faculty supervisor?	<u> </u>							
4.	Did you receive adequate information regarding the program to make you an effective site supervisor?								
Comments: How would you rate the internship program? Check one. Excellent Very Good Average Minimal Unacceptable									

Q:\Site Supervisor Eval - Final form\Site Supervisor Eval-FINAL.docx

Please make any suggestions or comments regard	ing the internship program.	
Site Supervisor's Signatur	re	Date
State University of New York College of Agricult internship program. We appreciate the time and cintern. We hope it was a positive and learning ex	effort you have contributed to its succ	ess and to the success of your
Site Supervisor's Name:	Date:	
Title/Position:	Telephone:	
Mailing Address:		
Email Address:		
Thank you for taking the time to complete this ev	aluation. Please mail, email or fax fo	rm to:
Faculty Supervisor:	Telephone:	FAX: (518) 255-XXXX
Email:		
State University of New York College of Agricultur	re and Technology at Cobleskill, Coble	skill, NY 12043
If you choose to send this back electronically, pleas	e send as an attachment from your em	ail account.

Q:\Site Supervisor Eval - Final form\Site Supervisor Eval-FINAL.docx



Bachelor Degree Internship Program STUDENT EVALUATION FORM- FINAL

Student: Internship Site:		Date:						
inte com	coduction: The purpose of this as ernship experience. The form sho nments about the internship exp ditional comments are invited who	ould be completed by terience. Please circle	the student intern. We wo	uld appi	reciate h	onest a	and ob	jectiv
	4. Exceptional	3. Very Good	2. Satisfactory	1. U	nsatisfa	ctory		
A.	Professional Competencies/Pro Rate the quality of the learning 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.	-	owing areas:	4 4 4 4 4 4	3 3 3 3 3 3	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1 1	NA NA NA NA NA
	8. 9. 10.			4 4 4	3 3 3	2 2 2	1 1 1	NA NA NA
В.	Rate the quality of: The orientation to the job and of the training provided. The adequacy of resources avail the interactions with coworkers. The job description provided the receptiveness to your contribute regular constructive feedbarthe learning experience received the work assignments' education the site supervisor's arrangement the internship experience in religoals. Opportunities for you to develot the opportunities for you to be behavior.	able to accomplish pro- butions and opinions ck from your site super d from your site super onal value nt of a mutually agree ation to your academic p problem solving ability rk as a part of a team. ter understand organiz	visor on your progress visor d-upon work schedule discipline and/or career ities. vational structure and	4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
C.	Were the responsibilities assigned If no, please explain:	ed consistent with your	abilities?	Yes	No			
D.	Rank the quality of your interns	hip experience:						
	4. Exceptional	3. Very Good	2. Satisfactory	1.	Unsatis	factory		
	Make any suggestions or comm	ents regarding the inte	rnship:					

E. INTERNSHIP PROGRAM EVALUATION

Answer the following with an "X" in the appropriate area. Comments are encouraged.

		Yes	No	Uncertain
1.	Did you have a positive experience with the internship program?			
2	Did your internship fulfill your expectations?			
3.	Were you able to complete your objectives and activities listed in the ILA?			
4	Were you able to maintain an open line of communication with your site supervisor?			
5	Do you feel you were able to maintain an open line of communication with your faculty supervisor?			
6	Did your internship provide enough structure?			
7	Would you recommend this internship site to other students?			
8	Did your site supervisor provide any information or advice regarding career choices or future employment opportunities?			

O	future employment opportunities?			
0		\perp		
Cor	nments:			
	Student Signature		Date	

State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology at Cobleskill thanks you for participating in this internship program. We appreciate the time and effort you have contributed to the success of your internship. We hope it was a positive and learning experience for you and will help you in your future career.

Thank you for taking the time to complete this evaluation. Please mail, email or fax this form to:

State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology at Cobleskill Cobleskill, NY 12043

Faculty Supervisor's Name and Contact Info:

Email:

Fax:

Q:\Student Eval - Final form\Student Evaluation Form-FINAL.docx



Internship Site: Cooperator's Name:

State University of New York College of Agriculture and Technology Cobleskill, New York

Bachelor Degree Internship Program INTERNSHIP SITE ASSESSMENT FORM

Internship Site Address: Intern: Faculty Supervisor: Internship Program Dates Beginning: Ending: Please answer the following by checking the appropriate box. Comments are appreciated. Uncertain No Yes 1. Was this a good internship site personally and professionally for this intern? Why or why not? 2. Was the intern exposed to modern technology and progressive attitudes for the industry at this site? 3. Did the site supervisor work well with the intern and spend the required time with him/her? 4. Would you recommend this site be used in the future? If not, why? 5. What recommendations or changes would you suggest before placing another intern at this site? 6. What type of intern would best succeed at this internship site? 7. What are the strong points this site has to offer interns? 8. What are the negative features regarding this internship site? Comments:

Q:\Internship site assessment form.docx

Part V: Internship Program Assessment

Regular assessment of the internship program is required to determine its effectiveness and to find ways to improve the program. Information obtained from the Internship Site Supervisor Evaluation Form-Final and Student Evaluation Form-Final will be reviewed, and this data utilized to make meaningful changes to the program. Other sources of information may be found in surveys of alumni or job statistics of graduates and specific focus groups.

The results of the internship program assessment shall be included in an annual assessment report and disseminated to all appropriate constituencies. This report shall describe the most recent assessment of the program, what was learned from the assessment, and what improvements resulted. Feedback that links assessment to positive change is a regular component of effective programmatic assessment. Changes to the internship program will be implemented based on assessment data. These changes will be evaluated the following year to test for effectiveness.

APPENDIX Baccalaureate Internship Manual

A: Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)

In general, companies that work with SUNY student interns want to be sure that the student cannot be classed as an "employee." Where there is no employment relationship under the FLSA, the minimum wage and overtime pay provisions of the FLSA will not apply. (See 29 U.S.C. §213.)

The Department of Labor, relying on U.S. Supreme Court decisions addressing the status of trainees under the FLSA (e.g., Walling v. Portland Terminal Co., 330 U.S. 148 (1947)), has developed a six-part test for assessing whether a trainee, intern, or student is covered as an employee under the FLSA.

In general, internships are subject to the FLSA, and academic credit is not an alternative to minimum-wage compensation. There is, however, a "trainee" exception. In an advisory, the U.S. Dept of Labor states that if all of the following criteria apply, students are not employees within the meaning of the FLSA:

- A. The training, even though it includes actual operation of the facilities of the employer, is similar to that which would be given in a vocational school;
- B. The training is for the benefit of the trainees or students;
- C. The trainees or students do not displace regular employees, but work under their close observation;
- D. The employer that provides the training derives no immediate advantage from the activities of the trainees or students, and on occasion his operations may actually be impeded;
- E. The trainees or students are not necessarily entitled to a job at the conclusion of the training period;
- F. The employer and trainees or students understand that the trainees or students are not entitled to wages for the time spent in the training.

Academic credit will generally satisfy criterion A. Criteria C, E and F are especially important as well. The trainee exception can still apply without the awarding of course credit, but the evidentiary burden for proving the exception is higher. The first two criteria would have to be shown more strongly than if credit were earned.

The law states that the FLSA applies to enterprises that engage in interstate commerce or handle goods moved or produced in interstate commerce, when the enterprise does more than \$500,000 in annual dollar volume of business. However, some employers and employees are covered regardless of the value of business done. Also, some employees are exempt by virtue of their

positions. Therefore, it is not possible to make general statements about what businesses or employees are or are not covered by the FLSA.

B. Reporting Discrimination and Harassment:

Guidelines for SUNY Cobleskill Interns and Their Supervisors

What constitutes harassment, discrimination, and sexual violence?

On July 22, 2014, New York Governor Andrew Cuomo enacted legislation that extends the laws against workplace discrimination and harassment to interns. Employers are prohibited from discriminating against interns based on age, race, creed, color, national original, sexual orientation, military status, sex, disability, religion, pregnancy and other factors.

The law also extends protection to interns who are sexually harassed at work. The law provides that it is an unlawful discriminatory practice for an employer to engage in unwelcome sexual advances, request sexual favors, or engage in other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature with an intern when that action affects the terms and conditions of the intern's employment. It also prohibits harassment based on any other protected class and prohibits employers from retaliating against interns who report acts of discrimination or harassment.

What is the general procedure for reporting workplace discrimination and harassment?

If you experience harassment or discrimination at an internship at SUNY Cobleskill:

- 1. Notify Erica Hoerz, Director of Student Conduct and Title IX Coordinator, as soon as possible. Erica's office is located in Bouck Hall, Room 113. Erica's phone number is (518) 255-5229.
- 3. The college will promptly investigate and take appropriate action.

If you experience harassment or discrimination at an off-campus internship site:

- 1. Notify your internship organization's Human Resources office.
- 2. Notify Erica Hoerz, Director of Student Conduct and Title IX Coordinator, who will, in conjunction with your internship advisor, will work with the internship organization to address and resolve the complaint.

If you are unsure whether you are being subjected to harassment or discrimination, please speak with Erica Hoerz.

If you need assistance connecting with Ms. Hoerz, please contact Lisa Weatherwax, Director of Career and Graduate Pathways at weatheel@cobleskill.edu or (518) 255-5217.

Where can I find additional information and resources related to harassment and discrimination?

SUNY Cobleskill Human Resources Website - www.cobleskill.edu/hr. The College's policy on

sexual harassment, the Internal Discrimination Complaint Procedure, and the Discrimination Complaint Form can be found under the "policies" and "forms" section of this website.

SUNY Cobleskill Title IX Website: www.cobleskill.edu/titleix. Information about gender based harassment, discrimination, and sexual violence can be found on this website, including informational articles and videos.

New York State Division of Human Rights – Protection for Interns in the Workplace: https://dhr.ny.gov/interns. The official New York State Guidelines for protection of interns in the workplace. This site also includes helpful questions and answers.

HR; 8/2017

C: Unemployment Insurance and Student Interns

Companies and individuals working with student interns will generally be aware of state unemployment insurance regulations. §511(17) of NYS Labor Law, the section that includes a discussion of unemployment insurance, notes that for unemployment insurance issues, "employment" does not include service performed by an individual enrolled at a public educational institution as a student in a full-time program taken for credit which combines academic instruction with work experience that is an integral part of the program.

C: Resources for Internships and Works Cited

General Overview

Giles, Dwight, and Mary Ryan. "Internships in Higher Education." *Encyclopedia of Education*. Ed. James W. Guthrie. 2nd ed. 8 vols. New York: Macmillan Reference Library, 2002.

Professional Organizations

Middle States Commission on Higher Education. 3624 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19104. National Society for Experiential Education. c/o Talley Management Group, Inc. 19 Mantua Road, Mt. Royal, NJ 08061. (856) 423-3427; (856) 423-3420 (fax). E-mail: nsee@talley.com.

Books

Inkster, Robert P., and Roseanna G. Ross. *The Internship as Partnership: A Handbook for Campus-Based Coordinators and Advisors*. Raleigh, NC: National Society for Experiential Education, 1995.

Kendall, Jane. *Strengthening Experiential Education in Your Institution*. Raleigh, NC: National Society for Internships and Experiential Education, 1986.

Knowles, Malcolm S. *Using Learning Contracts: Practical Approaches to Individualizing and Structuring Learning*. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1986.

Salem, Richard. G., ed. *Internship Handbook*. 2nd ed. Washington: American Sociological Association, 2005.

Stanton, Timothy, and Kamil Ali. *The Experienced Hand: A Student Manual for Making the Most of an Internship*. 2nd ed. New York: Carroll, 1994.

Sweitzer, H. Frederich, and Mary A. King. *The Successful Internship: Transformation and Empowerment*. Belmont, CA: Wadsworth, 2003.

Zanville, Holly, and Richard Markwood. *A Casebook on Practice in Internship Education*. Boulder, CO: Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education, 1982.

Articles and Documents

Bansak, Cynthia, Adler, Renatte K., and Katherine Wolf. "A Learning Outcomes Index of Achievement in Academic Internships." 22 February 2005. Social Science Research Network. 26 September 2007

Clark, S. C. "Enhancing the Educational Value of Business Internships. *Journal of Management Education* 27.4 (2003): 472-84.

Employment and Unemployment Insurance. New York State Labor Law §511 (17). 4 September 2007

Gold, M. "The Elements of Effective Experiential Education Programs." *Journal of Career Planning & Employment* 62.2 (2002): 20-24.

Inkster, Robert. "Internships and Reflective Practice: Informing the Workplace, Informing the Academy." *ERIC Digest* (1994). ERIC Document Reproduction Service No. ED376459.

"Internship Guidelines." National Association of Schools of Public Affairs and Administration (1977)

Middle States Commission on Higher Education. *Characteristics of Excellence in Higher Education*. Philadelphia: 2006.

Naylor, Michele. "Work-based Learning." ERIC Digest 187 (1997). ERIC Document Reproduction Service No. ED411417.

Parilla, P. F., and G. W. Hesser. "Internships and the Sociological Perspective: Applying Principles of Experiential Learning." *Teaching Sociology* 26.4 (1998): 310-329.

Ryan, Mary, and John R. Cassidy. "Internships and Excellence." *Liberal Education* 82.3 (1996): 16–23.

Schultz, J. M. "The Salaried, Credited Internship in Environmental Studies. *Journal of Environmental Education* 12.3 (1981): 7-12.

State University of New York University Faculty Senate, Undergraduate Academic Programs and Policies Committee. *Guide for the Evaluation of Undergraduate Academic Programs* (revised 2001).

Tovey, Jamie. "Building Connections between Industry and University: Implementing an Internship Program at a Regional University." *Technical Communication Quarterly* 10.2 (2001): 225-39.

Watkins, Ryan, and Charles Schlosser. "Moving Past Time as the Criteria: The Application of Capabilities-Based Educational Equivalency Units in Education." *Online Journal of Distance Learning Administration* 5.3 (2002). State University of West Georgia, Distance Education Center. 6 September 2007